
 
 
City of Lone Tree Planning Commission Agenda 
Tuesday, July 14, 2015 

 
Meeting Location:  City Council Meeting Room, Lone Tree Civic Center, 8527 Lone Tree Parkway 
Meeting Procedure: The Lone Tree Planning Commission and staff will meet in a public Study Session at 6:00 p.m. in 

the lower level of the Civic Center.  The Regular Meeting will be convened at 6:30 p.m. in the City 
Council meeting room. Contact Jennifer Drybread, jennifer.drybread@cityoflonetree.com if special 
arrangements are needed to attend (at least 24 hours in advance). Comments from the public are 
welcome during the Public Comment portion of the meeting (brief comments on items not 
appearing on the regular meeting agenda). Those persons requesting to comment on an agenda item 
will be called upon by the Chair. If you have any questions please contact Jennifer Drybread, 
Senior Planner, at jennifer.drybread@cityoflonetree.com, or 303-708-1818. 

 
 

 
6:00 p.m. Study Session Agenda 

 
1. Administrative Matters 

 
6:30 p.m. Regular Meeting Agenda 

 
1. Opening of Meeting / Roll Call 

 
2. Conflict of Interest Inquiry 

 
3. Public Comment  

 
4. Minutes of the June 23, 2015 Planning Commission meeting 

 
5. RidgeGate III (Martin Fein) Apartments, Project SP15-29R, located east of Park 

Meadows Blvd. and south of Commonwealth Street in RidgeGate, proposes a 219-unit 
apartment building on 3.18 acres. 
 

6. Schwab Trainstation Circle, Project SP15-32R, located near the existing Charles Schwab 
I-25 highway sign in RidgeGate, proposes a single-story, 5,000-square-foot office 
building. 
 

7. City of Lone Tree Comprehensive Plan amendments, Project MI14-07 (Public Hearing) 
 

8. Adjournment 
 

 

mailto:jennifer.drybread@cityoflonetree.com
mailto:jennifer.drybread@cityoflonetree.com


1 
 

MINUTES OF THE 
Lone Tree Planning Commission Meeting 

June 23, 2015 
  

Lone Tree Civic Center 
 

1. Attendance 
 

In attendance were: 
 
Martha Sippel, Chair 
Dave Kirchner, Vice-Chair 
Rhonda Carlson, Planning Commissioner 
Andrew Dodgen, Planning Commissioner 
Roy Kline, Planning Commissioner 
Stephen Mikolajczak, Planning Commissioner 
Herb Steele, Planning Commissioner 
 
In attendance from city staff were: 
 
Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner 
Hans Friedel, Staff Minuteman 

 
2. Regular Meeting Call to Order 

 
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. with a quorum. 

 
3. Conflict of Interest 

 
There were no conflicts of interest stated. 
 

4. Public Comment 
 

No members of the public spoke. 
 

5. Minutes of the June 9, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting 
 

Commissioner Kirchner moved, and Commission Dodgen seconded, with 
Commissioner Mikolajczak abstaining due to his previous absence, to approve 
the minutes of the June 9, 2015 meeting. 
 

6. RidgeGate Filing 18, Lot 3, Site Improvement Plan, Project SB15-35R 
 

Mr. Friedel presented an overview of the proposed site improvement plan. He 
explained how the building was part of the original site improvement plan for 
RidgeGate Commons when Cabela’s was approved, though the building 
orientation had changed.  He stated that the building is lower than the bluffs as 



2 
 

shown on the photo simulations, but that the zoning allows for a maximum 
building height of 250 feet, subject to FAA approval. He explained that the 
original design was reviewed and enhanced as a result of the review by the 
RidgeGate Design Review Committee (DRC). He stated that the application is in 
conformance with the Lone Tree Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Code, Subdivision 
Code and the RidgeGate Office District Sub-Area Plan. Staff recommends 
approval, subject to final approval by the Public Works Department.  He then 
introduced Mr. Darryl Jones of Coventry Development Corporation. 
 
Mr. Jones stated that they were looking for a variety of hotel types in RidgeGate, 
and that this extended stay hotel helps realize that objective.  He mentioned that 
Cabela’s was supportive of having a hotel in RidgeGate Commons.  Mr. Jones 
stated that the plan for the Marriott hotel generally in keeping with the original 
plans for the area.   
 
Mr. Brent Adcock, project representative and President for Propel Development, 
LLC, stated that the building is approximately 56-feet tall.  The plan includes a 
covered bike pavilion that will serve not only hotel patrons, but the general public 
by providing a drinking fountain, bike rack with adjacent air pump, and a bench – 
inviting visitors to air up and refresh themselves coming to and from the trail.  He 
stated that the parking ratio exceeded the required amount by five spaces.  He 
said their design intent was to create a homogenous look and feel with Cabela’s, 
while providing an enhanced exterior beyond their prototypical design through 
added stone and the addition of a porte-cochere.   
 
Mr. Adcock spoke about the building orientation, stating that they wanted their 
guests to take advantage of the northern views from the landscaped patio.  He 
felt that their patrons would not find it confusing to find their front door on the 
south side of the building. He talked about the landscape materials selection 
being based in large part on those selected for the Cabela’s development in 
Lincoln Commons.  Mr. Adcock explained that the lighting was selected based on 
the Marriott standard, and that lighting would be shielded and would not trespass 
on adjoining properties.  He mentioned that they had put a red stake on the bluff 
to indicate the top of the highest roof line.  He added that the site will be graded 
down 4 – 5 feet.   
 
Commissioner Dodgen asked if there was a photo simulation as viewed from 
Montecito.  Mr. Adcock responded that there was a view taken from RidgeGate 
Parkway at Montecito.  Mr. Adcock added that the building colors were chosen to 
blend in with the natural landscape, and that board and batten and stone 
materials were added to break up the stucco and add depth to the building.  He 
went on to state that fire pits and seating areas were added so their guest could 
enjoy the views, and that they had selected quality outdoor furniture. He showed 
a prototypical example of a Marriott TownePlace Suites extended stay hotel in 
Laredo, Texas, which was mostly stucco.   
 



3 
 

Chair Sippel said she appreciated seeing the other prototypical Marriott 
(extended stay) hotels.  She suggested making a number of changes to the 
submittal materials before going to City Council, including labeling the orientation 
on the renderings, and adding north arrows, legends, and scale to the cross 
section pages. Chair Sippel also requested that the applicant show the bluffs and 
Montecito on Section A as they are shown on Sections B and C. She stated that 
she liked the selection of trees, but questioned the selection of the Northern Red 
Oak.  She recommended that the applicant consider the spread of junipers next 
to the sidewalks.  She asked about the access from private drives.  Mr. Adcock 
showed where there were two points of access.  She asked about the 4-5 foot 
cut for grading.  Mr. Troy Kelts, the project engineer, responded that the majority 
of the grading was done to prepare the site for Cabela’s, and that earthen 
material had been deposited on their site.  Chair Sippel asked if they added more 
evergreens.  Mr. Adcock responded that this was done at the request of the DRC 
and staff. Chair Sippel recommended that the applicant provide a photo 
simulation from Montecito.  She also asked how the bike pavilion would be 
secured.  Mr. Adcock explained that their maintenance staff would ensure it was 
maintained.   
 
Commissioner Dodgen stated that he likes the plan and the bike hut. He asked if 
there were lights in the bike pavilion.  Mr. Adcock said yes, and that the lighting 
would also provide some measure of security.  Commissioner Dodgen stated he 
would like to see light fixtures in their parking lot, consistent with those for 
Cabela’s.  He suggested that the applicant look into using colored concrete in the 
parking lot; he had observed that such has not hold up well elsewhere in 
RidgeGate.  Commissioner Dodgen expressed that the proposed pedestrian 
bridge did not fit in with the project.  He asked whether there would be a 
complementary shuttle to the light rail station and whether rental cars could be 
brought to the hotel.  Mr. Adcok responded that they would have a shuttle, and 
they would promote the access to light rail.    
 
Commissioner Kirchner expressed that it was a great looking project and a good 
addition to the community.  He liked the bike pavilion as an amenity.  He asked 
about the extent of the retaining walls on the site.  Mr. Adcock, stated that the 
walls were 2 ½ - 3 foot tall and would tie into the grade.  Commissioner Kirchner 
inquired as to whether the roofing material would be 3-tab roofing shingles or 
commercial dimensional shingles, stating that he preferred dimensional roofing 
material.  Mr. Adcock responded that the roofing materials would be commercial-
grade, dimensional, composite shingles. He asked if the key to the landscape 
materials be added to the landscape plan for ease in reviewing.  Commissioner 
Kirchner asked if the backgrounds (such as the bluffs and Montecito) could be 
added on the site sections to get a better sense of size and scale. 
 
Commissioner Steele said he was looking forward to the project; he felt they did 
a great job, it was in a good location, and would add to the community.  He also 
said the DRC did a good job in helping to create the end product.  Commissioner 
Steele asked about the wayfinding signage.  Mr. Adcock said that the building 



4 
 

sign on the east side of the building would be visible from I-25, and that it was 
possible they would add signage on the north side of the building, but wanted to 
be considerate of the Montecito residents.  Mr. Darryl Jones added that the 
Cabela’s sign would include the hotel name, and the name would also be on the 
freestanding sign along RidgeGate Boulevard, but that they would continue to 
look at this.   
 
Commissioner Steele asked about lighting in the bike pavilion (whether it would 
be by a switch, timer, or photocell), and his concerns for the impact on Montecito 
residents.  Mr. Adcock said they could put it on a timer switch in deference to 
Montecito residents.  Commissioner Steele asked what impact wind would have 
on landscaping given the elevated site. Mr. Adcock answered that if the plants 
worked well at Cabela’s, it would work on their site as well, and that they could 
reevaluate that as time goes on. Commissioner Steele asked about water runoff 
and whether native grasses would be used.  Mr. Adcock responded that a more 
manicured lawn would be used closer to the hotel, but would transition to native 
grass the further away from the hotel.  Commissioner Steele asked about access 
to the bike pavilion.  Mr. Adcock responded that they plan to tie the sidewalk to 
the hut.  Commissioner Steele stated that Cabela’s set a good standard and 
Marriott have also stepped up.  He liked the rock in the landscaping, and stated 
that it was a nice development.  
 
Commissioner Kline expressed that the Marriott was a good addition to the 
community, and thought the bike pavilion was awesome.  He asked if the 
applicant planned on signage to welcome the public to the bike pavilion.  Mr. 
Adcock responded that they could add that.  Commissioner Kline said he would 
like wayfinding signage coming from the west.  He also asked if the fire pits 
would be active every night.  Mr. Adcock answered yes, and that if the winds 
caused the gas flame to blow out, the pit had a safety cut-off switch.  He added 
that the staff would turn off the fire pit each night.  Commissioner Kline asked if 
the stone in the fire pit would be compatible with the stone on the building, and 
Mr. Adcock said that it would.   
 
Commissioner Kline added that he also did not like the design of the pedestrian 
bridge.  He also agreed that the lighting in the parking lot should be the same as 
that in the Cabela’s lot for continuity.  He asked if the standing-seam metal roof 
would be on the dormers, and Mr. Adcock responded that it would not.  
Commissioner Kline asked how the louvers on the air conditioning units would be 
maintained, since they would be painted. Mr. Adcock answered that they are 
looking at color options for the windows and louvers, and Carlos Valenzuela, 
from Propel Construction, said that the finish on the air conditioning units would 
be powder coated, so the warranty is good.   
 
Chair Sippel inquired about the white horizontal course line on the building.  Mr. 
Adcock responded that these were EFIS accents and would tie the Hardy Board 
to the stone.  
 



5 
 

Commissioner Mikolajczak asked Mr. Adcock to confirm the building material 
colors. Mr. Adcock showed an optional color for the green, stating they were 
looking at more of a muted green color.  He added that the color of the lumber at 
the porte-cochere would be a natural finish.  Commissioner Mikolajczak asked 
about the stucco finish. Mr. Adcock stated it would be more of a knock down 
finish; they like a more smooth texture as it holds up better.  Commissioner 
Mikolajczak stated that he likes the orientation of the building, since it opens up 
the areas on both sides of the building and provides good views.  He felt the 
orientation would invite people outside to enjoy the weather and the patio 
provides a place for people to come together.  He likes the muted green color.  
Commissioner Mikolajczak asked how people would access the site. Mr. Adcock 
responded that most people would come up Cabela’s Drive. Commissioner 
Mikolajczak asked about landscaping and sidewalks on the private drives. Mr. 
Jones responded that they were not looking at changes and that the access will 
remain as it is for now. Commissioner Mikolajczak stated that the bike pavilion is 
genius, is good PR, and great for the community, and felt it was a beautiful 
project.   
 
Commissioner Carlson stated she had overshot the turn trying to get into 
Cabela’s; confirming the earlier discussion on the necessity of wayfinding. She 
asked about the red stake on the property, adding that she did not see it in the 
field on her last site visit. Mr. Adcock responded that the red flag is 3 feet below 
the white fence, which marks the highest point of the hotel property. The bluffs 
will be visible above the red flag. Commissioner Carlson said that she likes the 
mountain lodge look, as it epitomizes Colorado and matches the Cabela’s theme.  
She added that she is thrilled to see the drinking fountain for dogs.    
 
Chair Sippel added that she would like to see the location of the red flag 
identified on cross sections A and B.   
 
Commissioner Mikolajczak asked for a clarification on the retaining wall by the 
bike hut.  Mr. Adcock responded that they took that out, as it was not needed.   
 
Commissioner Kirchner moved to recommend approval of the site improvement 
plan, conditional on Public Works approval, and Commissioner Steele seconded. 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 

7. Adjournment 
 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 
 
These minutes have been reviewed and confirmed by  
 

 
_________________________  (name), on __________________(date) 
 
 















CITY OF LONE TREE 
Community Development Department 

 

TO:  City of Lone Tree Planning Commission

FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director
  Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner

DATE: July 7, 2015

FOR:  July 14, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting

SUBJECT: RidgeGate Sec. 15, Flg. 17, 1st Amdt, Lot 6A 
Site Improvement Plan (RidgeGate III) 
Project SP15-29R

Owner:      Representative:     
Coventry Development Corp.   Martin Fein Interests, Ltd
10270 Commonwealth St. Suite B  Greg Talbert
Lone Tree, CO 80124    1400 Post Oak Blvd, #500

     Houston, TX, 77056

Planning Commission Meeting Date:    July 14, 2015
City Council Meeting Date:       August 4, 2015
______________________________________________________________________

A. REQUEST:

Approval of a Site Improvement Plan (SIP) to construct a five-story
(including clubhouse), 219-unit multi-family apartment building on 3.18
acres in RidgeGate.   

B. LOCATION:

The site is located in RidgeGate, east of Park Meadows Boulevard and 
south of Chatham Drive.  



RidgeGate III
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File SP15-29R 

2 

Direction Zoning Land Use
North RidgeGate PD Apartments (Amli at RidgeGate)
South RidgeGate PD Undeveloped, zoned for 

commercial/mixed use
East RidgeGate PD Vacant land (Embassy Suites Hotel -

approved but not constructed)
West RidgeGate PD Office (Charles Schwab  campus)

C. SITE CHARACTERISTICS:

The site has been overlot graded and will slope gently down from south to 
north (5,986’ to 5,979’ above sea level) upon final grading.  The land
presently consists largely of prairie grasses and weeds.  

D. SERVICE PROVIDERS:  

Water:   Southgate Water District
Sanitation:  Southgate Sanitation District
Police:  Lone Tree Police
Fire:   South Metro Fire Rescue Authority
Metro District: Rampart Range Metropolitan District

E. BACKGROUND:

The application has been reviewed and approved by the RidgeGate 
Design Review Committee (DRC), which had considerable input on the 
building design and materials (minutes from those meetings are attached).  

The property is subject to future subdivision (currently in process) to 
create the lot specific to this use.  Approval of the SIP at this stage creates 
no conflict with that objective.

F. DESCRIPTION: 

Zoning. The proposed apartment building is an allowed use in the 
Commercial Mixed Use Zone #2 (C-MU) of the RidgeGate 4th Amendment 
Planned Development.



RidgeGate III
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File SP15-29R 

3 

Access. Pedestrian access will be provided on all four sides of the 
building, with the primary access along Chatham Drive.  Auto access into 
the parking garage is via Trainstation Circle on the east side of the 
building. Resident access to the units will be from within the building.

Parking. Parking exceeds the minimum City requirement for apartment 
uses by three spaces.  (The applicant has not requested a reduction in 
parking based on proximity of this site to the future Sky Ridge light rail 
station or for on-street parking along Chatham Drive, which is an option 
available for consideration afforded through the City’s code.) Parking for 
this site is provided within a parking structure “wrapped” entirely by the 
building. This design effectively screens the view of the parking structure 
from public view. 

Building Design. The building design is in conformance with the City’s 
Design Guidelines. The building has undergone several significant 
changes since it was first proposed at the RidgeGate DRC. Building colors 
were modified to distinguish this building from the apartments to the north 
of this site, yet are compatible with surrounding development. The use of 
varied building forms, rooflines, facades, and entryways, results in a 
reduction in the overall mass and scale, consistent with the City’s Design 
Guidelines.  

The building is designed to wrap around structured parking. The ramp 
leading to the upper deck of the parking will be painted to be compatible 
with building colors.  Parking should not be visible from surrounding areas, 
aside from parking lot lighting. The applicant has prepared cross sections
to evaluate views from key vantage points.  

The roof-top mechanical units will be screened. The electric transformer 
box is located in a cut out in the east side of the building (the electrical 
meters are located in the same area).  

Landscaping.  The landscaped area comprises 19 percent of the project 
site (the minimum requirement by the City Code is 15 percent), and 
includes landscaping in the courtyard. This percentage does not include 
the extensive landscaping in the rights-of-way planted and maintained by 
the Rampart Range Metro District.

Staff is requesting that a more drought tolerant alternative to Kentucky 
Blue Grass be used in non-high-traffic areas, with the specific turf type , 
shown on the landscape plan,  as required by the City’s landscape 
regulation Sec. 16-32-90 (c), and have added this as a recommended 
condition of approval. All other plant materials are hardy and well adapted 



RidgeGate III
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File SP15-29R 

4 

to this environment, and the use of evergreens will provide year-round 
color.  

Lighting. Lights are consistent with City standards and fixtures are 
shielded in keeping with the City’s regulations that promote dark skies.  

Snow Storage and removal. Very little snow will need to be stored on the 
site due to the layout (interior structured parking). Three areas are 
reserved for snow storage on the roof-top level. The Rampart Range 
Metro District will be responsible for sidewalk snow removal.  

Trash Collection. Such facilities will be located inside the parking 
garage.  

Local Park Dedication.  This application is required to satisfy local park 
dedication requirements in accordance with the RidgeGate Residential 
West Sub-Area Plan formula and policy for cash-in-lieu of land dedication. 
In this case, the project is providing a considerable amount of private 
amenities including an outdoor living courtyard with a swimming pool, spa, 
multiple seating/lounge areas, a fountain, fire pit, and outdoor kitchen.
There will also be a 1,410 square-foot fitness center and a 639 square-
foot yoga/pilates room. Using guidelines in the Sub-Area Plan, staff 
recommends that a 75% credit be granted for these amenities resulting in 
a remaining cash-in-lieu of park land fee of $36,000, to be paid to the City 
at the time of building permit issuance.  

G. REFERRALS:

Homeowner Associations (HOAs) who subscribe to the City’s referral 
service were sent copies of the application. The RidgeGate West Village 
Community Association was sent a referral and did not respond.

The Lone Tree Terrace HOA responded that they had no concerns with 
the building design, but expressed concern with the traffic congestion at 
Lincoln and Park Meadows Drive/Blvd.

Due to a turnover in staff at South Metro Fire Rescue, that agency has
asked for extended review time. However, staff expects a referral 
response prior to the Planning Commission meeting.  

The City Building Department response comments have been addressed 
by the applicant.  



RidgeGate III
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File SP15-29R 

5 

The City Public Works Department responded that the plan appears 
acceptable, and that their specific comments will need to be addressed 
prior to final approval.  

H. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the SIP requirements 
of the Lone Tree Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, the Comprehensive 
Plan, and the RidgeGate Residential West Sub-Area Plan.

Staff recommends the Planning Commission recommend approval of the 
SIP to City Council, subject to the following conditions: 

1. Final approval of the Site Improvement Plan is subject to City of 
Lone Tree Public Works approval.

2. The applicant shall be required to submit to the City cash-in-lieu of 
local park land dedication in the amount of $36,000. This shall be 
required prior to issuance of a building permit.

3. That a drought tolerant alternative to Kentucky Blue Grass be 
shown on the Landscape Plan (Sheet 11).

I. ATTACHMENTS

Development Application
Letter of Authorization
Narrative
Statement of Design Intent
Referral Responses
DRC Meeting notes and approval letter
SIP
Renderings

END





























 
RidgeGate  
Residential Design Review Committee 
Martin Fein Interests, Ltd. 
Schematic Design Meeting 
August 26, 2014 
 
 
In attendance for the Design Review Committee: 
Jon Hindlemann, Hindlemann Architects 
Craig Karn, Consilium Design 
Steve Lane, Kephart Architects 
Keith Simon, RidgeGate 
Kevin Yoshida, The Abo Group 
 
In attendance for the City of Lone Tree: 
Jennifer Drybread 
 
In attendance for Martin Fein Interests, Ltd: 
Martin Fein, Martin Fein Interests 
Greg Talbert, Martin Fein Interests 
Timm Wooten, Martin Fein Interests  
Gregg Brown, DHM Design 
Rus Meinzer, DHM Design 
Trang Tran, Harris Kocher Smith 
Sanford Steinberg, Steinberg Design 
 
 
Applicant Presentation: 
 
The building will be four stories wrapped around a 6 story parking structure.  Leasing activities will be 
placed on the ground floor and amenities on the top floor of the garage structure, to provide views to the 
Front Range.  Amenities details/elevations are still being developed but are conceptualized to include glass 
walls along west side of the building, to maximize views, an outdoor patio area, business center, and fitness 
center and yoga studio.  Site plan and landscape plan details include, site grading drops 10-15 feet 
diagonally across site from southwest to northeast, parking ratios are being determined, streetscape 
similar yet different from The Vue.   
 
The architecture presented is in response to the comments from the previous submittal.  The building 
footprint was moved back and units stepped in order to flow with the curve of Park Meadows with more 
classic architecture with tower elements.  Material uses include a split face brick base with stucco at the 
top of the building. 
 
DRC Comments: 
 
Architecture 

The DRC prefers contemporary architecture.  An example would be the CityPlace project in 
Springwoods. (Applicant presented classic architecture with modern touches.) 



Consider transparent/glass corner elements, lightening up the top and softening the base. 
Consider modifying cornices – create a hierarchy and add angles.  Schwab retail building would be 
an example. 
Consider more horizontal massing. 
The DRC liked the CMU and metal awning, consider more contemporary expressions. 
Accentuate leasing and entry area. 
Consider recessing door or patio units to create shadow lines and interest. 
Consider direct to street unit access. 
Consider ways to buffer light rail noise into units similar to approach taken for the Vue project. 
Provide a 3D sketch up model to provide project context with surrounding projects at next 
meeting. 
 

Site Plan/Landscape Plan 
Study the parking ratios.  City parking ratio at transit oriented development sites will remain the 
same as their current residential requirements. 
Coordinate streetscape with Rampart Range Metro District. 
Consider ways to activate the northwest corner streetscape to make the streetscape more urban. 
Identify locations for exterior bicycle parking. 
No formal public art requirement. 

 
 

The meeting ended at 2:48pm.  The applicant was conditionally approved to the Design Development 
phase of the DRC process.   



 
RidgeGate  
Residential Design Review Committee 
Martin Fein Interests, Ltd. 
Design Development Meeting 
November 12, 2014 
 
 
In attendance for the Design Review Committee: 
Jon Hindlemann, Hindlemann Architects 
Craig Karn, Consilium Design 
Steve Lane, Kephart Architects 
Dick Marshall, Landscape Architect 
Keith Simon, RidgeGate 
Kevin Yoshida, The Abo Group 
 
In attendance for Martin Fein Interests, Ltd: 
Martin Fein, Martin Fein Interests, via telephone 
Greg Talbert, Martin Fein Interests 
Timm Wooten, Martin Fein Interests  
Rus Meinzer, DHM Design 
Trang Tran, Harris Kocher Smith 
Sanford Steinberg, Steinberg Design 
 
Applicant Presentation: 
 
The applicant presented the revised architecture and landscape plan.  Modifications include: 
 

1. Reducing the height of the parking garage one level.  The club house is still visible at the top of the 
building. 

2. Extended unit patios along Chatham to engage the pedestrian level.  Patios do not have direct 
access to the sidewalk.  This condition is in response to City comments.  Will extend the hardscape 
to the patio edges due to the narrow setback. 

3. Increased the use of glassing around leasing office. 
4. Added a hipped roof center tower element.  Roof material will be metal and recesses 18” in from 

the fascia. 
5. Simplified the exterior awnings.  Awnings and columns will be aluminum. 
6. Landscape plans along Park Meadows Drive and south edge of project will mirror The Vue 

landscape plans.  Along Trainstation the standard urban streetscape of sidewalk, tree lawn, and 
small landscape area is planned.  Along Chatham, streetscape will be hardscape with tree grates 
and raised planters, due to setback condition. 

7. Sidewalk along Chatham will be constructed with pavers.  A different pattern will be used at the 
leasing office entry. 

 
DRC Comments: 
 
Architecture 

The DRC recommends a more urban and modern/contemporary architecture. 



Combine two of the sidewalks/staircases along the west elevation. 
Simplify or eliminate cornice details. 
Further develop the architecture of the clubhouse’s north elevation. 
Strengthen the verticality at corners.  Consider eliminating the second banding and increasing the 
height.  Consider bringing the wall material all the way to the ground and eliminating the 
continuous base materials at the corner elements (and perhaps in other key spots). 
Consider making the center building element on Chatham Drive similar to the corner elements. 
Consider increasing the height of the ground floor for the entire project and increasing the 
glassing/transparency and/or activate the interior space along Chatham Drive. 
Eliminate the hipped roof element while increasing the height and simplifying at the center 
element on Chatham Drive. 
Reconsider column materials and numbers at the center element on Chatham Drive. 
Provide a sketch up model. 
 

Site Plan/Landscape Plan 
Consider opportunities at the northwest corner to lower the planting level so as not to obstruct the 
views out of the ground level units. 
In conjunction with the central entry/exit along Park Meadows, consider bolder uniform tree 
plantings around the stairs. 
Consider adding a raised planter or pots between the hardscape and patios along Chatham.  
Consider pulling planters around the corners where appropriate. 
Consider opportunities for a break in the parallel parking along Chatham Drive in front of the 
leasing entry (similar to The Vue).  Need to coordinate with RRMD regarding execution and cost . 
Consider a more urban plant material palette on Chatham Drive and Trainstation Way. 

 
 

The meeting ended at 12:00pm.  The applicant was asked to resubmit in the Design Development phase 
of the Design Review process.   



RidgeGate  
Residential Design Review Committee 
Martin Fein Interests, Ltd. 
Design Development Meeting 
February 19, 2015 
 
 
In attendance for the Design Review Committee: 
Jon Hindlemann, Hindlemann Architects 
Craig Karn, Consilium Design 
Steve Lane, Kephart Architects 
Keith Simon, RidgeGate 
Kevin Yoshida, The Abo Group 
 
In attendance from the City of Lone Tree: 
Jennifer Drybread 
Hans Friedel 
 
In attendance for Martin Fein Interests, Ltd: 
Martin Fein, Martin Fein Interests, via telephone 
Greg Talbert, Martin Fein Interests 
Timm Wooten, Martin Fein Interests  
Rus Meinzer, DHM Design 
V. Claire Bennett, Harris Kocher Smith 
Sanford Steinberg, Steinberg Design 
 
Applicant Presentation: 
 
The applicant presented the revised architecture and landscape plan.  Modifications include: 
 

1. Simplified elevation per comments made at previous November 2014 meeting including corner 
elements, balcony railings (due to code issue) and windows. 

2. Increased glazing on the ground floor. 
3. Added masonry. 
4. Metal rod on awnings. 

 
The applicant discussed issues related to the center element on Park Meadows and corner 
awning.  The center element created visual conflicts with the club house and the suggested 
awning wrap around the corner did not fit with the building rhythm. 
 
DRC Comments: 
 
Architecture 

Architecture is an improvement. 
Consider alternative material color choices.  Current color scheme is too similar to The Vue/AMLI.  
Consider increasing use of brick to further develop the richness while using the same material 
palette.  Consider a break out building. 



Create a more urban edge along Park Meadows.  Consider adding an entry portal at mid-building, 
at the stairs, to engage the street, including vertical extensions  at the stairs landing. 
There was discussion regarding the accuracy of the windows as rendered.  The DRC prefers more 
recessed windows and shadow lines as presented on the rendering.  Chatham elevation feels flat is 
windows are not set back. 
Consider bringing brick up to the top band of the building on the east and west elevations to break 
up the stucco. 
Consider alternative material for the window trim due to high maintenance costs. 
Consider adding a few more awnings or porches to the east and west elevations. 
The City will require 4 sided perspective renderings be submitted with the SIP package. 
Consider using a larger brick at the base of the building. 
Consider increasing the width of lower facia trim to add dimension. 
Consider making the windows at the corners one large window. 
 

Site Plan/Landscape Plan 
Screen Xcel transformers as allowed by Xcel, subject to discussion with Xcel regarding 
encroachment into the right of way. 
Consider adding streetscape details to the rendering to give a better illustration of the site. 

 
 

The meeting ended at 2:20pm.  The applicant was asked to resubmit, administratively, in the Design 
Development phase of the Design Review process.  Revisions can be forwarded electronically and upon 
DRC support, the DRC will issue the official approval letter to the applicant. 
































































	7-14-15 PC Agenda
	6-23-15 PC Minutes Final
	MINUTES OF THE
	Lone Tree Planning Commission Meeting

	RIII Binder1 red II

